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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of The Lalit Great Eastern Kolkata Hotel Limited (formerly known as Apollo
Zipper India Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

\We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of The Lalit Great Eastern Kolkata
Hote! Limited (formerly known as Apollo Zipper India Limited) (‘the Company’), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act’) in the manner SO required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133
of the Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and its loss (including other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Gode of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw your attention to the Note 49 of the accompanying statement which describes the uncertainties
due to the outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic and management evaluation of the same on the financial
statement of the Company as at the balance sheet date. In view of these uncertainties, the impact of the
Company’s result is significantly dependent on future development;

Our opinion is not modified is respect of these matters
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information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director Report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

The Director Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor’s report. We have nothing to
report in this regard

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company'’s Board of Directors. The
Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Fina ncial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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« identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control,

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and. based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern;

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures. and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation;

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure | a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) we have sought and except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section,
obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

b) the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

c) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act,
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d) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the

g)

Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

we have also audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company as on 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated
27 August 2020 as per Annexure || expressed un modified opinion;

the matters described in paragraph 4 under the Emphasis of Matter in our opinion, may have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company; and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i the Company, as detailed in note 37 (ii) to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact
of pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2020;

i, the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2020,

i there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2020

iv.  the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes
were applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, which are not
relevant to these financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

( an v o L7 N

Rohit Arora / = \7)
Partner \2\ /]
Membership No.: 504774 NN , :

UDIN: 20504774AAAAKET7610 P

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 August 2020
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Annexure | of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of The Lalit
Great Eastern Kolkata Hotel Limited (formerly known as Apollo Zipper India Limited) on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Annexure |

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on
the financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the
normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

i (@

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets (in the nature of Property, plant
and equipment and other intangible assets).

(b) The fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the

year and we are therefore unable to comment on the discrepancies, if any, which
could have arisen on such verification. However, the Company has a regular
program of physical verification of its fixed assets under which fixed assets are
verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties, which are included under the head

(i)

‘Property, plant and equipment’ are held in the name of the Company.

In our opinion, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory
at reasonable intervals during the year and no material discrepancies between
physical inventory and book records were noticed on physical verification. Also,
refer paragraph 3 under the heading ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ paragraph in our
main report

(i) The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)(a)

Chartered Accountants

Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses
3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186
of the Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security.

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014 (as amended) Accordingly. the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been
regularly deposited to the appropriate authorities, though there has been a slight
delay in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof
were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service-tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise and value added tax on account of any dispute. are as
follows:

m—
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Statement of Disputed Dues

I

|

Name of the | Nature of Amount | Amount paid | Period to Forum where
statute dues 3 under Protest | which the dispute is
| {inlacs) | (¥ inlacs) amount pending
| b relates
Service tax Input tax 232 0.17 Assessment | Customs, Excise
credit year 2017-18 | and Service Tax
Appellate
\ Tribunal

(viii)

(ix)

()

(i)

(xii).

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

For Wa

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any bank
or financial institution during the year. The Company did not have any outstanding
debentures and loan from government during the year

The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). In our opinion, the Company has applied moneys raised
by way of the term loans for the purposes for which these were raised.

No fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

The Company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration. Accordingly,
the provision of clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause
3(xii) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections
177 and 188 of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in
the financial statements etc., as required by the applicable Ind AS.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures.

In our opinion, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the
directors or persons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

Iker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No_: 0010?6NIN5009,3_.._

(v

Rohit Arora

Partner
Membe
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rship No.: 504774 NN

UDIN: 20504774AAAAKE7610

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 August 2020

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure |l to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of The Lalit
Great Eastern Kolkata Hotel Limited (formerly known as Apollo Zipper India Limited) on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Annexure |l

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the
standalone financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of The Lalit Great Eastern Kolkata
Hotel Limited (formerly known as Apollo Zipper India Limited) (the Company’) as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company as at that date

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

2 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the
Company's business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india (1CAI’) prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of The Lalit
Great Eastern Kolkata Hotel Limited (formerly known as Apolio Zipper India Limited) on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020,
based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India..

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
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Rohit Arora |

Partner e
Membership No_: 504774 N\ A
UDIN: 205047 74AAAAKE7610 Ny

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 August 2020

Chartered Accountants



Lalit Great Eastern Kolkata Hotel Limited (Formerly known as Apollo Zi

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020

ipper India Limited)

(All amounts Rs in Lags)

Particulars MNotes As at As al
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Non-current assets
a} Property, plant and equipnent 2 31,287 16 32 58475
by Capital work=in-progress R.585.89 7.161.43
¢) Intangible assets i 4.60 658
1 Financial assets
(i) Other non current financial assets 4 106.72 26309
&) Non-current tax nssets (net) 5 94 58 14014
) Cther non-current assets [§ 5871 64 .08
Total non current assets 40,137.66 40,220.07
Current assets
) Inventories ‘) 223 65 0475
by Financial assets
(1) Trade recervables 8 125,75 440.51
(i) Cash and cash equivalents ¢ 1167 PR
() Loans 10 4,02 390
{iv) Other current financial assets 11 350 41.12
d ) Other current assels 12 b8 46 G98.68
Total current assets £36.05 888,14
Total assets _40&?! 41,108.21
Equity
a) Equity share capital 13 80 87 8087
by Other equity
Deemed equity contnbution 21,33090 21,330.90
Retamed camings 14 (4,296 32 (3 80D8L)
Total Equity 17,115.45 17,604.95
Liabilities
Nop-current linbilities
a) Fipancial labilities
(1) Borrowings 15 12,393 83 13,179 84
) Provisions 16 43,95 4015
o) Deferred tax habilities (net) 17 7.306 63 7,004 TH
&1 Other non-current liabilities I8 - ih 58
Total non current liabilities 19,834.41 20,861.35
Current linhilitics
i} Financial habihines
(1) Bormowings 19 1871 46 689.26
(1) Trade payables 20
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 44) 34.05 22.60
. ol outstanding dues of ereditors other than micra and small enterprises 609 89 540,18
(i) Other current financial liabihities 21 1.279.23 1.059.78
by Provisions 22 49.03 4495
o Other current liabilines 23 18014 285.14
Total current liabilities 4,023.85 2,641.91
Total equity and linbilities 40,973.71 _41.108.21

Summiry of significant accobnting policies
The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP
Firm Registration Numbet DOTO7ENNI0001 S

Charered Accountaits
P 4

5

Raohit Arora
Partner
Membersihip No. S04774

Place New Delln
Date: 27 Aug 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Lalit Great Eastern Kolkata Huotel Limited

Dr. Jyotsna Suri
Managing Director
DIN: 60004603

Place: New Delln
Dare 27 Aug 2020



Lalit Great Eastern Kolkata Hotel Limited (Formerly known as Apollo Zipper India Limited)

S t of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts Ks in Lacs)

Particulars Notes  For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Revenue
Revenue from operations 24 5.734.95 6079 10
Other meome 25 128,50 104 23
Total income 5.863.45 6,183.33
Eapenses
Cost of food and beverages consumed 26 715,56 925.91
Purchase of traded goods (1853 090
Change in mventonies of traded goods 27 0.27 (0.39)
[xcise duty on sale of food - 3
Emplovee benefits expense 28 935.35 988,14
Other expenses 29 2.470.94 2.684.97
Total expenses 4.122.97 4,599.53
Earnings before interest, tax. depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 1,740.48 1,583.80
Finance meonme 30 0063 1841
Fiance cosls 31 (1,065 18] (874.32)
Depreciation and amortization expense 32 {1,381.50) (1,405.18)
Loss before exceptional items and tax (699.57) (677.29)
Loss hefore tax and exceptional items (699.57) (677.29)
Tax expense:
Current tax = -
Deferred tax (credity/charge 46 (208 68) (201.96)
Total tax expense (208.68) (201.90)
(Loss) for the vear (40.89) (475.33)
Other comprehensive income
Tems that will not he reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years
1) Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans - actuarial gain or (loss) 1.92 3.34
1) Income tax effect (0L53) (0.93)
Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in 1.39 241
subsequent years
Total comprehensive (loss) for the year, net of tax (489.50) (472.92)
Earnings per cquity share
Basic and diluted 13 (60 T0) (58.78)
Sunimary of significant accounting policies |

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP
Firm Registration Number OD1076NMNS0001 3
Chartered Accountants

Rohit Arora
Partner
Membership No 504774

Place. New Delln
Date: 27 Aug 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Lalit Great Eastern Kolkata Hotel Limited

e, Jyotsni Suri
Managing Director
DIN: 00040603

Place: New Delln
Date: 27 Aug 2020




Lalit Great Eastern Kolkata Hotel Limited (Formerly known as Apolla Zipper India Limited)
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts Bs in Lucs)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

A.

.

Cash flow from operating activities:

Profit before tax

Non-cash adjustments to recencile profit before tax 1o net cash flows
Depreciation and amornsanon expenses

Provision for doubtful debts

Excess provision credit balances witien back

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Interest ncome

Interest expense

Government grant income

Unrealized foreign exchange loss [ (gain)
Operating profit before working capital changes:
Movements in working capital

Diecrease in other non current assels

{Increase) | Decrease in trade receivables

Decrease i other current hinancial assets
nl'l:ll."-'lsl: m Hl!lﬂl current assets

(Increase) monventenes

Increase n frade pavables

(Decrease¥nerease in other curremt financial abilities
Increase in shor tenm provisions

Increase in long term provisions

{Decrease) in other current liabilities

Increase tn other non current liabilines

Cash Generuted from Operations

Tax paid (net)

Net cash flow from operating activities (a)

Cash flow from investing activities:

Purchise of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3 below)
Proceeds from sale of property . plant and equipment

Interest recerved

Proceeds from/(investment in) bank deposits

Net Cash low (used in) investing activities (b)

", Cash flows from financing activities;

Proceeds from long term borrowings (ner)

Proceeds from short term horrowings (net)

Interest pad

Net Cash flow (used inyfrom financing netivities (¢)

Net increase in eash and cash equivalents (atb+e)
Cash and cash equivalents at the begmning of the yenr
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

.. Components of cash and eash equivalents:

Balances with banks

- on Current accounts
Cheques/drafts on hand
Cash on Hand

Notes:
1. The figures in bracket indicate outflows

(699 57) (677.29)
1,381 50 1,405 18
2075 24 08
(6.72) (29 B}
a4 702
(h63) (18.41)
1,065.18 87432
(53.15) (48.49)
(3.31) (2.22)
1,698,49 1,535.73
453 4.21
{5,498 32 49
1762 1583
3011 1965
(17 90y (5.73)
L+ 21,40
(077) 0.51
4.08 987
I # 13.09
(104, 26) (46.02)
16.57 4.67
1,755.39 1,605,10
45.56 = (61.50)
1,800,958 1,543.30
(1,548 60) (1,987 6b)
015 0.78
59.12 143
107.19 236
(1,382.14) (1,980.09)
(1,281 .5%) 740.39
1,182.20 105 64
(306.98) (30018}
(406.33) 446,85
12.49 10,006
G018 89.12
111.67 99.18
100.02 9222
604 0.62
5.61 6,34
111.67 99,18

3 The cash flow has been prepared under the "Indirect method”, s set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 - Statement of Cash Flows,
5.

Additions to property, plant and equip
pending allocation and the same has been treated as part of investing activities,

See accompanying notes to the financinl statements

As per our report of cven date

For Walker Chandiok & Co, LLP
Firm Registration Number: 001076N/N500013
Chartered Accountants

@VYW_

Rahit Arora f A\
Parmer
Membership Mo 504774

Place. New el
Date: 27 Aug 2020

went are stated inclusive of movements of capital work-in-progress (including capital advances) and preoperative exprenditure

Fur and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Lalit Great Enstern Kolkata Hotel Limited

Dr, Jyotsna Sur
Managing Direcion
DIN: DOO04603

Place New Delhi
Date; 27 Aug 2020
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020

{All amounts Rs in Laes)
A) Equity share capitul

Notes Amount
As at 31 March 2019 13 80.87
Changes i equity share capital S
As at 31 March 2020 13 80.87
B) Other equity (All amounts Rs in Lacs)
Particulars Attributable to equity holders of Lalit Great Eastern Kolkata Hotel
Limited
Deemed equity | z ;
# iy | Retained Total other
portion of interest i caiiias uity
free loan FATEING Sy

For the year ended 31 March 2019
Asat | April 20018 21,185.70 (3,333.90) 17,851.80
Profit for the year - (475.33) (475.33)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - 241 241
Deemed equity component of interest free loan (refer note 47) 145 20 - 14520
As at 31 March 2019 21,330.90 (3,806.82) 17.524.08
For the year ended 31 March 2020
As at 1 April 2019 21,330,90 (3,800.82) 17,524.08
(Loss) for the year - (490 849) (490 89)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 1.39 | 39
Deemed Equity component of interest free loan (refer note 47) - B -
As at 31 March 2020 21,330.90 (4,296.32) 17,034.58
Summary of significam accounting policies I

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLI For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Firm Registration Number: 001076N/NSO0013 Lalit Great Eastern Kolkata Hotel Limited

Chartered Accountants

ﬂ\" \ W& |

Rohit Arora Jf';-_ / Dr. Jyotsna Suri

Partier | ;' . -] Managing [rector

Membership No 504774 k\--‘:\. / DIN: DOUD4603 N 00005370
\\\"""- ’/

Place: New Delht Place New Dethi

Date 27 Aug 2020 Date: 27 Aug 2020




Lalit Great Eastern Kolkata Hotel Limited (Formerly known as Apollo Zipper India Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

1. i) Corporate information

Lalit Great Eastern Kolkata Hotel Limited (Formerly known as Apollo Zipper India Limited), (‘the Company’) is
a public limited Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provision of the Companies Act, 1956.
The Company is a subsidiary of Bharat Hotels Limited and is engaged in the business of hospitality services.
The Company has its principal place of business located at 18, Hemanta Basu Sarani, Kolkata, West Bengal
- 700 069.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resalution of the directors on 27 August
2020.

ii) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 20186.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and
on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at
fair value / amortised cost [Refer note iii (i) below].

The financial statements are presented in INR, which is the Company's presentation currency as well as the
functional currency for all its operations and all financial information are presented in Indian Rupees, unless
stated otherwise.

As at 31 March 2020, the total assets of the Company are Rs.40,973.71 lacs (31 March 2019:Rs. 41,108.21
lacs) whereas the total liabilities of the Company are Rs. 23.858.26 lacs (31 March 2019: Rs. 23,503.26 lacs)
[including amounts payable to the parent Company 31 March 2020: Rs. 3,618.53 lacs and (31 March 2019:
Rs.3.282.59 lacs)]. Further, the accumulated losses at year-end are 31 March 2020 Rs. 4,296.32 lacs and 31
March 2019 are Rs. 3.806.82 lacs. The management has obtained commitment of its parent Company for
continued financial and operating support and considers it appropriate to prepare these financial statements
on going concern basis.

iii) Significant accounting policies

a) Current versus non-current classification
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

« Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
« Held primarily for the purpose of trading
e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

« The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
e Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
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¢ Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« There is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

+« The Company classifies all other liability as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b) Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. VVhen significant parts
of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately
based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised
in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred. The present
value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Capital work in progress is stated at cost,
net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method using the rates arrived
on the basis of the useful life which coincides with the useful life prescribed under Schedule I of the
Companies Act, 2013 except for furniture and fixtures and some items of plant and machinery in which
useful lives are different from those prescribed under Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. In respect of
these furniture and fixtures and some items of plant and machinery, the management believes that these
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are
likely to be used. The identified components are depreciated over the useful life, the remaining asset is
depreciated over the life of the principal asset. The Company has used the following rates to provide
depreciation on its fixed assets:

Tangible assets Useful life as per the Useful economic lives
Schedule Il estimated by the
| management (years)
Freehold building 60 60
" Plant & machinery 15 7.5-15
Furniture & fixtures 10 8
Vehicles . 8 8
" Office equipment 5 5
Computers 5 3

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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c)

d)

Where, during any financial year, any addition has been made to any asset, or where any asset has been
sold. discarded, demolished or destroyed, or significant components replaced; depreciation on such assets
is calculated on a pro rata basis as individual assets with specific useful life from the month of such addition
or, as the case may be, up to the month on which such asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or
destroyed or replaced

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part
of carrying value of another asset.

The Company has capitalised computer software in the nature of software licenses as intangible assets and
the cost of software is amortized over the license period or three years, being their expected useful
economic life, whichever is lower.

De-recognition

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of non-financial Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or
cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
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(1

e)

exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into
account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or
other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash
flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the
statement of Profit and Loss.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining
useful life.

The impairment assessment for all assets is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency'). The financial statements
are presented in Indian Rupee (INR). which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency spot rates
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses
an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.
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Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value ina
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The
gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or
loss, respectively).

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

« In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal of the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing

the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period or each case.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy

as explained above.
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This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

« Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions
. Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
« Financial instruments

g) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

The Company applies the revenue recognition criteria to each separately identifiable component of the sales
transaction as set out below:

Revenue from hotel operations

Revenue from hotel operations comprise sale of rooms. food and beverages, liquor and wine, banquet rentals
and other services relating to hotel operations including telecommunication, laundry, business centre, health
centre etc. Revenue is recognized as and when the services are rendered and is disclosed net of allowances.
The Company collects taxes such as goods and service tax (GST) on behalf of the government and, therefore
these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.

Membership programme revenue
Membership revenue is recognized pro rata over the period of the membership term. Joining fee is recorded
as income on sale of membership card.

Loyalty points programme

The Company operates a Lalit loyalty points pregramme, Lalit Connect, Lalit Plus, Lalit Engage, which allows
customers to accumulate points when they stay in the hotels of the Company. The points can be redeemed
for free stay, subject to @ minimum number of points being obtained. The fair value of the points issued is
deferred and recognized as revenue when the points are redeemed.

Sale of goods (Trading goods

Revenue is recognized when all significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the
buyer.

Interest Income

Interest income on fixed deposits is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable interest rate.

h) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part
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of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing
costs.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial assets are classified in four categories.

« Debtinstruments at amortised cost

« Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

« Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
« Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual

cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
prafit or loss. This category generally applies to trade, security deposits and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

()
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Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).
However, the interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss are
recognised in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OClI
is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as
interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria
for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost
or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates
a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the P&L.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held
for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind
AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. Such
election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and
is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI
to P&L. even on sale of investment. However, cumulative gain or loss may be transferred within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

« The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

« The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-
through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
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rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109: Financials Instruments, the Company recognizes impairment loss allowance
on trade receivables based on historically observed default rates. Impairment loss allowance recognized
during the year is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company'’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of
profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.
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Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reclassification of financial instruments

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial
liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change
in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be
infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in the business model as a result of
external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident
to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to
perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies
the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next
reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously
recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original Revised ‘
classification classification

—

Accounting treatment

i Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Amortised cost FVTPL | Difference between previous amortized cost and fair
value is recognised in P&L

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
FVTPL Amortised Cost gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on the
new gross carrying amount

Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortised cost and fair
value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to
reclassification

Amortised cost FVTOCI

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
amortised cost carrying amount. However, cumulative
FVTOCI Amortised cost | gain or loss in OC| is adjusted against fair value.

‘ Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always
' been measured at amortised cost

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
carrying amount. No other adjustment is required
Assets continue to be measured at fair value.
FVTOCI FVTPL Cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in QOClis
reclassified to P&L at the reclassification date

FVTPL FVTOCI
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)

k)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related
service. The Company has no obligation other than the contribution payable to the Provided Fund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit
or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Other employee benefits
Compensated absences

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within one year from
the balance sheet date is recognised on the basis of undiscounted value of estimated amount required to
be paid or estimated value of benefit expected to be availed by the employees. Liability in respect of
compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than one year after the balance sheet
date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the
projected unit credit method. The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance
sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settiement for 12 months after the reporting

date.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the

increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the

year.
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m)

n)

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Leases

At inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the arrangement is or contains a lease.
The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance
lease.

Finance leases are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalized in accordance with the Company's general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are
recognized as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty
that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except in case where lease rentals are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increase.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they
are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer
from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflecta constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the

lease.

Taxes ) OnBNDIg
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Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates
taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

« When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

« In respect of taxable temporary differences assoclated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of

unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except.

e  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the reporting date.

T
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

o) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product
to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

Stores and spares inventory comprises cutlery, crockery, linen, other store items food and beverage, liquor
and wine items in hand: Cost is determined on first in first out basis. Circulating stock of crockery and cutlery
issued for more than two months is charged to the profit and loss account as consumption.

Trading goods: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on a first in first out basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business, less estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Inventory of food and beverage items in hand includes items used for staff cafeteria and is charged to
consumption, net of recoveries, when issued.

p) Government grants and subsidies

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the
expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair
value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the
benefit of the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual installments. When loans or similar assistance are
provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market
rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is
initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference
between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured
as per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

g) Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application
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r)

s)

t)

u)

of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the period. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex
and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in
note 36. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual resuits could differ from those
estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in
the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortization and interest
income (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company
measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company
does not include depreciation and amortization expense, interest income, interest expense and tax expense.

Standards issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 116- Leases:

On 30 March 2019, MCA has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all
leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17.
The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of 'low-value' assets and short-term
leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to
separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-

use asset.

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., @
change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change inan index or rate used
to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the
lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under Ind AS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in Ind AS 17 and
distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

The Company intends to adopt this standard from 1 April 2019. As the Company does not have any material
leases. therefore, the adoption of this standard is not likely to have material impact in its financial statement.

Appendix C to Ind AS 12

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment: The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when
tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of Ind AS 12 and does not apply to taxes or
levies outside the scope of Ind AS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and
penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The Interpretation specifically addresses the following:

« \Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

« The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities

« How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and tax rates

« How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

An entity has to determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one
or more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty
should be followed.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

« Full retrospective approach — Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each
prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight and

+ Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity
on initial application, without adjusting comparatives.

The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2019. The Company
will apply the interpretation from its effective date and is in the process of evaluating the impact of this
amendment on its financial statements.

Amendments to Ind 23 Borrowing Costs:

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to
develop a qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its
intended use or sale are complete.

An entity applies those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies those amendments. An entity applies those amendments for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2019. The Company is in the process of evaluating
the impact of this amendment on its financial statements.
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Lalit Great Eastern Kolkata Hotel Limited (Formerly known as Apollo Zipper India Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 3: Intangible Assets
(All amounts Rs in Lacs)

Particulars Amount
For the year ended 31 March 2019
Gross carrying amount
Asat 01 April 2018 54 32
Additions for the year .

Disposals/adjustments =

Gross earrying amount as at 31 March 2019 54.32
Accumulated amortisation

Asat O Apnl 2018 4571
Amortisation for the year (refer note 32) 203
Lisposals/adjustments ®
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2019 47.74
Net book value as at 31 March 2019 6.58

For the year ended 31 March 2020

Gross carrying amount

Asat | April 2019 5432
Additions for the year

Disposals/adjustments =
Gross earrying amount as at 31 March 2020 54.32

Accumulated amortisation
Asat | April 2019 47 74

Amortisation for the year (refer note 32) 198
Dhspasals/adjustments ”
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2019 49.72

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2020 4.60
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(All amounts Rs in Lacs)

As at
31 March 2020

Asal
31 March 2019

Other non-current financial assets

{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated |
Balances with Banks:

- Deposits with onginal maturity of more than 12 months
- Margin money deposited (held as security)*

Interest accrued on deposits with banks

*Break up of margin money deposit held as security
Held as bank guarantee by Canara Bank, given 1o custom authorities
Held as bank guarantee by ICIC] Bank Ltd | against external cammercial borrowings

Non current tax assets (Net)

Advance income 1ax [net of provision amounting o Rs 42,130,
(31 March 2019: Rs 42,130)

Other non-current assets

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Capital advances

Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less : Provision for doubtful capital advanees

Total (A)

Prepaid expenses (B)

Grand Towal C (A+B)

Inventories

(Valued at cost or net realisable value which ever 1s lower)
- Traded goods

- Food and beverage (excluding hiquor and wine)

- Liguor and wine

- Stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others

Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less  Provision for doubtful trade receivables

Trade recervables are non-interest bearing and are generally on tenns of 0-60 days (refer note 40),

All amounts are short-term. The net carrying value of trade receivables is considered u reasonable approximution of fair value
All of the Company’s trade recervables in the comparative periods have been reviewed for indicators of impairment

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks

In current accounts
Cheques/drafts on hand
Cash on hand

4.38 104 38
64,70 H8 58
3764 9013
106.72 263.09
24.17 3297
4081 1561
94 58 14014
94.58 140,14
31 30 52 14
2808 28 08
79.38 80.22
28 U8 28.08
51.30 52.14
741 1194
58.71 04.08
514 541
3290 25.87
83.06 83.26
101,55 90.21
222.65 204.75
42575 440051

51.30 30.55

477.05 471.06
51,30 30.55

425,75 440.51

10002 92.22

6.04 0.62

5.61 6.34

111.67 99.18
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10,

(All amounts Rs in Lacs)

Asal
31 March 2020

Asal
31 March 2019

Loans

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Security deposits

Oher current finuneial asseis®
Linbilled revenue
Income tax refund receivable

Other current assets®

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Prepard expenses

Balances with statutory authonties

Advance recoverable in cash or in kind

* All amounts are short-term The net carrying value of other receivables 1s considered a reasonable approximation of fair value All of the

Company's vther recervables in the comparative periods have been reviewed for indicators of impairment
Equity share capital

Authorised
1,000,000 (31 March 2019 1,000.000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed & paid up
808,710 (31 March 2019 808,710} equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid

Deemed equity
Equity portion of interest free loan from holding company (refer note 47)

) There 15 no change in the number of authorised and issued equity shares in curtent penod and previous year
Reconciliation of the Authorised and Issued Equity Shares at the beginning and at the end of the year.

Authonsed Number of Shares at the beginning of the vear
Change during the vear

Authorised Number of Shares at the end of the year

Authonsed Share Capital at the beginning of the vear
Change during the year

Authorised Share Capital at the end of the year

Issued share Capital at the beginning of the year
Change during the year

Issued share Capital at the end of the year

402 3.90

4.02 3.90

3.50 17.00

- 2403

3.50 41.12
1118 59.26
19.02 12,28
3826 2714
68.46 98.68
100.00 10000
R0 87 8087
80.87 50.87
21,330,090 21,330 90
21,330.90 21,330.90
100,001,000 10.00,000
10,00,000 10,00,000
100,00 10000
100,00 100,00

80 87 B0 87
80.87 50,87

b Shares held by holding company
727.839 (31 March 2019 727,839 equity shares are held by Bharat Hotels Limited. the Holding Company

¢) Term/night attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value ol Rs. 10 per share. Fach holder of equity shares is entitled 10 one vote per share.
In the event of hguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shures will be entitled (o receive remaining assets of the Company, after distnbuation
of all preferential amounts The distnbution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

d) During the current vear and previous year, no dividend has been proposed/declared

¢) Details of shareholders holding mare than 5% shares in the Company
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Lalit Great Eastern Kolkata Hotel Limited (Formerly known as Apollo Zipper India Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts Rs in Lacs)

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

Bharat Hotels Limited (the Holding Company) 7.27.839 727,839
Government of West Bengal 80 871 20871
Percentage of holding

Bharat Hotels Limited {the Holding Company) o0 90
Government of West Bengal 10 10

As per the records of the Company, mcluding its register of shareholders/members, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial
ownership of shares.

As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Other equity
Retained earnings
Asat 1 April 2019 (3,806 82) (3,333.90)
Add Profit / (loss) for the year (490.89) (475 33)
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year 1.39 241
As at 31 March 2020 (4,296.32) {3.806.82)
Borrowings
Non current borrowings
Term loans
Secured
Indian rupee loans from bank (refer note 1 below) 8,176.30 842504
Foretgn currency loan from a bank (refer note 2 below) 77101 9493 97
Linsecured
Loan from holding company (refer note 3 below) 361853 328259
Loan from associate companies (refer note 4, 5 & 0 below) 50000 |00 00
|oan from a director (refer note 7 below) 167.00 105.00
13,232.94 13,807.60
Less - Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 21) 83911 627.76
12,393.83 13,179.84

Notes:

I} Term loan from Yes Bank Linited aggregatng Rs. 817630 lacs (31 March 2019 © Rs £.425 04 lacs) carries interest 10 45% per annum payable
monthly The balance loan is repayable in 38 instalments. The loan 1s secured by:

a) First pari-passu charge on land and building of the hatel by way of mortgage

b First pari-passu charge on movable fixed assets {hoth present & future) of the hotel
) Second pari-passu charge on current assets (including recetvables) of the hotel

) Corporate puarantee of Bharat Hotels Limited, the holding company

2} Foreipgn currency loan from [CICI Bank Lid, Bahrain, aggregating to Rs 771 11 lacs (equivalent o USD 10 23 lacs converted at an exchange rate
of 75 3859 per USD) (31 March 2019 Rs. 993 97 Jacs {equivalent 1o USD 14 37 lacs converted at an exchange rate of 69 1713 per LSD) carries
inferest @ 5% margin on USD 6-months LIBOR. The balance foan 15 repayable in 9 instalments. The loan 15 secured by

a) First pan-passu charge on Kolkata property
by Corporate guarantee of Bharat Hotels Limited, the holding company

3y Unsecured interest free loan taken from Bharat Hotels Limited (s repayable after a period of 22 years (1. financial year 2042). The loan balance ol
Rs 3618 53 lacs and Rs 3282 59 lacs, represents the carrying value of the iterest Iree loan as on 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 respectively

)
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16.

(Al amounts Rs in Laes)

4) Unsecured loan taken from Deeksha Holding Limited (refer note 48) carries mterest @ 7 23% per year amounting to Rs. 500.00 lacs (31 March
2019 Rs. 80U lacs) 1s repayable in two years & carries interest (@ 7.25% per vear, the period may be reduced/extended between lenders and borrower
as mutually agreed. The lender reserve the right to recall the loan i full or in part after giving 60 clear days notice

5) Unsecured loan taken from Responsible Builders Private Limited (refer note 48) Nil in current year (31 March' 2019 Rs. 121 Lacs interest @ 7%
to 8% per year) 15 repayable within one year, the period may be reduced/extended between lenders and borrower as mutually agreed The lender
reserve the nght to recall the loan in full or in part after giving 60 clear days notiee

) Unsecured loan taken from Jyotsna Holding Private Limited (refer note 48) Nil in current vear (31 March 2009 Rs 80 00 lacs Interest 7% per
year} is repayable within one year, the period may be reduced extended between lenders and borrower as mutually agreed The lender reserve the right
to recall the loan in full or in part afier giving 60 clear days notice

71 Unsecured loan taken from Director Dr. Jyotsna Sun (refer note 48) carries interest @ 7% 1o 7.25% per vear amounting to Rs, 167.00 lacs . (31
March 2019 Rs. 105 00 lacs carries interest (@) 8% per vear) 1s repavable within two vears, the period may be reduced/extended between lenders and
horrower as mutually agreed. The lender reserve the right to recall the loan i full or in part after giving 30 clear days notice.

#) Loan covenants
Bank loans contan certain debt covenunts relating 1o limit on total borrowings wimount, secunty coverage rabio and others The Company has
breached certam loan covenants as at the end of the reporting date. However, the Company has obtained waiver letters from banks for compliance,

pursuant to which these loans have been classified as per their maturity profile,

Long term provisions

Provision for employee benefits

As at
31 March 2020

Asat
31 March 2019

Grawity (refer note 38) 4395 4015
43,95 40.15
Deferred tax labilities (net)
Deferred tax liability
Accelerated depreciation for lax 255234 238559
Deemed equity contribution 10,645 91 10.816.92
Fax impact of Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (.53 193
13,197.72 13,201.58
Deferrved rax asset
Losses avinlable for offsetting agamst future taxable imcome 5742 46 554894
Impact of expenditure charged to statement of profit and loss in current vear/earlier 3404 3155
veurs but allowable for tax purposes on payvment basis
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 24.59 16.31
5.801.09 5,596.80
Net deferred tax liability reflected in the balance sheet {7,396.63) (7,604.78)
Other non current liabilities
Deferred government grant (refer note 35) - 36 58
- 36,58
Borrowings
From related parties (unsccured)
Loan from a director (refer note 2 below) 10500 97.00
Loan From Deekhsha Holding (refer note 3 below) 1,105 00
Loun from Other related parties (refer note 4 & S below) 301.00
From bank (secured)
Cash credit facibuies (refer note | below) 36046 502.26
1,871.40 089,26
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Net debt reconciliation™

Company's movement in 1ts net debts during the year 1s as follows

31 Muarch 2020

(All amounts Rs in Lacs)

Particulars Non current Current Interest acerued on Total
borrowings borrowings borrowings

MNet debt as on 1 April 2019 13,807.60 HEY. 26 139 84 14,636 70
Cash flows, net 11,358.74) 1,182.20 - (176.54)
Foreign exchange adjustments 7718 - - 7718
Interest expense including effective - - 106217 106217
Interest expense
Interest capitalised - - 860,01 860 01
Interest pad - - (1,163.98) (1,163 98)
Fair value adjustments 706 90 . =706 Y90 4
Net debt as on 31 March 2020 13,232.94 1.871.46 191.14 15,295.54
31 March 2019

Particulars Non current Current Interest acerued on Tatal

borrowings borrowings borrowings

Met debt as on | April 2018 12,841.13 38361 91.95 13,516 69
Cash flows, net 65803 105 65 - 763 68
Foreign exchange adjustments 8235 - - 82.35
Interest expense including effective - 871.91 87191
inferest expense
Interest capitahised - 698 86 608 86
Interest pind . (1095 .63) (1,095.63)
Fair value adjustiments 22609 . (427.25) (201.16)
Net debt as on 31 March 2019 13.807.60 68Y.26 139.84 14,636.70

Notes:

1) Cash credit facihities from Yes Bank Limited amounting to Rs 360 46 lacs carries interest rate 10.80% per annum payable monthly (31 March
2019 Rs. 592 26 lacs carries interest rate 11.05%) per annum payable monthly. The loan is secured by

a) First pan-passu charge on current assets (including receivables) of the Hotel

b) Second pari-passu charge on land and building of the hatel by way of mortgage.

¢) Second pari-passu charge on meveable Fixed asset (both present and future) of the Hotel
d) Corporate Guarantee of Bharat Howels Limited, the Holding Company

2y Unsecured loan taken from Director Dr. Jvotsna Sun (refer note 48) carnes interest ) 8 00% per vear amounting to Rs 105 00 lacs (31 March
2010 97 00 lacs carries interest @ 7% to 7.25% per) is repavable within one vear, the period may be reduced/extended between lenders and barrower
as mutually agreed. The lender reserve the nght o recall the loan m full or i part alter giving 30 clear days notice,

3) Unsecured loan taken from Deeksha Holding Limited (refer note 48) carries interest @ 7.25% per year amounting to Rs. 1105.00 lacs (31 March
2019: Rs. Nil) is repayable in one year, the period may be reduced/extended between lenders and borrower as mutually agreed. The lender reserve the
right to recall the loan in full or in part after giving 60 clear days notice

4) Unsecured loan taken from Responsible Builders Private Limited (refer note 48) carnes interest & 7% o 8 %o per year amounting to Rs 19100
lacs (31 March 2019 Rs. Nil ) 1s repayable within one vear, the period may be reduced extended between lenders and borrower as mutually agreed
The lender reserve the nght 1o recall the loan in full or in part after giving 60 clear days notice

5} Unsecured loan taken from Jyoisna Holding Private Limited (refer note 48] carnies interest @ 7 %o (o 7.25% per year amounting to Rs. 110.00 lacs
(31 March 2019 Rs. Nil) is repayable within one year, the period may be reduced/extended between lenders and borrower as mutually agreed, The
lender reserve the right to recall the loan i full or n part after giving 60 clear days notice,

As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

20, Irade payables - Short term*

‘Trade payables for goods and services .
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 44) 34 05 22.60

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 619 8Y 540,18
643.94 562.78
—
21, Other current financial liabilities®

Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 15) 83911 627.76
Imterest accrued but not due on borrowings 182,73 121.54
Lues o directon 841 |8.30
Secunity deposits receved 7.65 .?_65
Al T_'-i”}.'o;!-\‘l'aynhlcs on purchase of fixed assets 5081 103.71
# / S Amplovee related liabilities 11697 117.74
; chention payable 7355 63 08
%) 1,279.23 1,059.78

* |
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22

23.

Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 38)
Compensated absences

(Al amounts Rs in Lacs)

Other current liabilities

Deferred revenue of membership programme
Advances [rom customers

Statutory dues payable

Deferred government grant (refer note 35)

875 3.34
40.28 41.61
49.03 44.95
00,36 63.35
6041 8215
2284 80 49
36,58 5315

180.19 285.14

(Thes spece has been intentionally lefi blank)
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(Al amounts Rs in Lacs)

24,

26.

27.

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Revenue from operations
Sale of services and products
- Room and apartment 2,928.81 293422
- Food and beverage 1.905 11 2,136 34
- Liquor and wine 354 98 428 42
- Banquet and equipment rentals 86 74 |14 598
- Other services 338 80 359 SR
- Membership programme revenue 113,69 92.15
- Traded goods 1 96 1.73
Other operating revenues
- Rent 4,86 668
5,734.95 6,079.10
Other income
Excess provision/ credit balances written back 672 29 96
Government grant income (refer note 35) 315 48 49
Miscellaneous income 68 (3 2578
128.50 104.23
Consumption of food and beverages
Consumption of food and beverages (excluding liquor and wine)
Inventory at the beginning of the year 2587 2791
Add: Purchases 624 12 81568
Less: Inventory at the end of the vear 32,90 25.87
Cost of food and beverages consumed (excluding liquor and wine) 617.09 817,72
Consumption of liguor and wine
Inventory at the begimning of the vear 83.26 78.11
Add Purchases 98.27 11334
Less Inventory at the end of the year 83 06 8326
Cost of liquor and wine consumed 98.47 108.19
Consumption of food and beverages (including liquor and wine) T15.50 925.91
Change in inventories of traded goods
Inventory at the beginning of the year 541 502
Less Inventory at the end of the year 514 541
Change in inventories of traded goods 0.27 (0.39)
Employee benefits expenses
Salaries, wages and allowances (refer note 42) 839.40 86010
Contribution to provident and other funds 6050 o4.07
Gratuity expenses (refer note 38) 10,56 988
Leave compensation expenses 292 1544
Staft welfare expenses 20.65 3425
Staff recruitment and traimng 1.32 440
935.35 988.14

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Lalit Great Eastern Kolkata Hotel Limited (Formerly known as Apollo Zipper India Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts Rs in Lacs)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
29, Oiher expenses
Consumption ol steres, cutlery, creckery, hinen. provisions and others 24713 28694
Lease rent 2.19 | 89
Power and fuel* 612.76 639,74
Banquet and decoration expenses 2941 41,28
Membership programme expenses 937 2070
Repair*
- Butldings* 5.55 5.3
= Plant and machinery 3142 316
- Others 7118 87 34
License fee amd management lee 28692 304.07
Rates and taxes |U8 45 20607
Insurance® 2450 18.18
Communication costs 32.28 4323
Printing and stationery 4970 73.12
Traveling and conveyance* 141.13 158 96
Advertisement and business promaotion 15471 167 84
Commission -other than sole selling agent 17999 164.95
Security and cleaning expenses (sub contracting expenses)¥ 25258 27279
Membership and subscriptions 10 30 12.03
Professional fees® 49.56 41,68
Fretght and cartage® 1010 [ 644
Exchange difference ( net) {1.22) -0.88
Loss on sale/ discard of fixed assets (net) 044 8.01
Donations 0.69 -
Provision for doubtful debts 2075 24 68
Directors fees and commission 6.30 7.50
Bank charges* 3846 44 .44
Payment to auditors (refer note a below) 5.00 500
News paper expenses 0495 0.98
Miscellaneous expenses (34 1,50
2.470.94 2,684.97
a. Payment to auditor
As auditor-
- Audit fees 5.00 5.00
5.00 5.00
* (refer note 42)
30, Finance income
Interest income on
- bank deposits 663 [8.41
0.63 18.41
31, Finance cost
Interest on:
-loans from banks 345 96 452 36
- credit facilities from banks 5632 65.17
- loan from associate companies 3508 18,14
- loan from Directors i3 4.87
LInwinding of finance cost from financial mstrument at amortised cost 014,68 331.37
Interest on defined benefit plans ERU 241
1.065.18 §74.32

The average capitahisation rate for interest expense included in the cost of work in progress was 6.26% (2019: 5.60%)

32, Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,379.52 1,403.15
Amortisation ol intangible assets | 9% 2.03
1.381.50 1,405.18
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33.

(Al amounts Rs in Lacs)

Earning per share (EPS)

Rasic and diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear

The fallowing reflects the profit/(loss) and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Basic and diluted earnings per share

(Lossyprofit attributable to equity share holders of Company for basic and diluted (490 89)
camings

Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic and diluted EPS 808710
Basic and diluted earning / (loss) per share in rupees of face value of Rs. 10 (in rupees) (60.70)

(475.33)

808710

(38.78)

There are no dilutive potential equity shares, Accordingly. weighted average number of Equity shares for diluted EPS 15 808,710

(This space has been intentionally feft blank)
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(Al amounts Bs in Lacs)

34, Segment reporting

3.

I'he Company has only one reportable business segment, which is operatmg hotels and (| operates m a singhe business segment based on the nature of the services,
the risks and returns, the organization structure and the intemal financial reporting sysiems Accordingly, the figures appearing in these financial statements relate
1o the Company's single business segment The Company's operation i located in India

. Govermment grant 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

AL the beginning of the year HOT 136.22

Add Gramt received during the year - -

Less Grant released 10 the stavement of prafit and loss 83,18 4849

At the end of the year 30,58 §9.73

Current Jo 58 5315

Non-cutrent - 36.58
J6.58 89.73

Government grants have been received for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment, There are no unfilfilled conditions or contingencies
attached 10 these grants

. Significant i i nts, estimates and

The preparation of the Company's fi TEQUITES It o make judg 5, € and that afféet the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses. assets and liabilities, and 1he accompaying disclosures, and the disci of liabilities Incertainty aboul these assumplions and
estimates could result in outcomes that requice a matenal adjustment 1o the earrying amount of agsets or hablities attected in future perinds

Judgements
In the process of applymg the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recogmsed in the fi I

Contingencies and
10 the normal course of busimess, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation and uther claims against the Company. A tax provision is recognised when
the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, 1t is probable that the Company will be required 1o settle that obligation Where it is management s

assessmeni that the outcome cannot be reliably quaniified or is uncertain the claims are disclosed s contingent habilities uniess the d of an adverse
outcome is remote Such labilities are disclosed in the notes bur are not provided for in the fimancial statements

Estimates and assumprions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertamty ab the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustoent 10 the carrying amounts of assets and habilities within the next financial year. are deseribed below The Company based i1s assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared Existing circumstances and assumptions about future develapments, however. may change due
1o market changes of circumstances arising that are beyond the contral of the Campany. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oecur

Defined benefit plans (gratuity beneflits)

The cost of the defined benefit watuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratity obligation are determined using pctuanal
valuations An actuarial valuation involves imaking various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the fiture These include the determination of
il discount rate, future salary increnses and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved i thi valuation and its long-term nature, defined benefit obligation
i highly sensitive 10 changes in these assumprions All nssumptions are 1eviewed at cach reporting date

The parameter most subject 10 chiange is the discount rate i determinmg the apprapriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the manngement considers the
fitterest fates of government bonds in currencies cansistent with the curtencies ol the post-employmen benefit obligation

[he mortality rate is based on publicly vailable mortality tables for the specific countnies. Those mortality tables tend 1o change only at interval in response to

demouraphic changes Future salary i and gratuity | are based on expected future inflation rates. Further details about gratuity obligations are aiven
in note 38
C i and ingencies

pital comunitients

Coamnutments relating 1o estimated amount of completion of property, plant and equipment are us Telioyws

31 March 2020
Estimated amount of 1o be d on capital account and not 321.29 408 08
provaded for
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e

(Al amounts Rs in Lacs)

il Contingent liabilities

31 Murch 2020 31 March 2019

Export commitment against EFCG licenses obtained 5,646,900 6,338.28
Duty payable if expor commitment not met 75040 837 68
Claims against the Company not acknow ledged as debt
- Service tax demand and penalty (refer note a below) 2.33 243
- Value added rax demand (refer note b below) - sl0e

Possible exposure in respect of Provident fund conrbution (refer note ¢ below) -

() Demand of service tax amouniing to Rs. 233 lakhs (31 March 2019 Rs 2.33 lakis) on account of disallowance of service tax input credit for the financial year
201617

i) Demand of Value added tax is Ks Nil (31 March 2019 Rs 51 16 lakhs) relating to financial year 2010-11

In respect of (a) and (b) above, the Company has filed appeal betore the appellate authorities against the demand peder received from department Based on internal
ihe I s confident that there would not be any probable autflaw of resources in these matters and hence no provision 18 considered necessary
at ths stage

(¢} The Hon'ble Supreme Court (SC) has, in a recent decision (SC decision’), ruled that vanous allowances like convevance allowance, special allowance,
education allowance, medical allowance ete., pald uniformly and universally by an employer to its employees would form part of basic wages for computing the
provident fund ('PF' or ‘the fund’) contribution and thereby, has taid down principles to exclude (or include) a particular allowance or payments from “basic wage'

for the putpose of computing PF contribution. The Company pays special 1l y 11 and others all to its employees as a part of it's
their compensation structure, which are not included in the basic wages for the purpose of computing the PF. The provision for employee contribution has been
recognised in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019 for the pay made atter judyiment date

i) In earlier years, the Company had given certain portion of the premises 10 vanous entilies and individuals on rent After acquisition by Bharat Hotels Limited,
the renovation of the property was miliated, for which it was necessary to have the afore-mentioned renfed out portions vacated Hon'dle Supreme Court vide its
order dated 20 April 2018, had directed the tenant te M/s Newman & Co. 1o vacate the prenuses within o months from the dute of order and they have vacated
the premises

38, Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

Description ! 31 Mareh 2020 31 March 2019
Grratuity plan 52.71 4349
Total 571 43,49

The Company has an unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan Every emploves who has completed five years or more or service gets o SEALUILY on separation equal
10 15 days salary (lase drawn salary ) Tor each completed year of continuqus service o part thereol in excess af 81X months

The following table summurizes the components of net bhenefit expenses recognised in the stmement of profit and loss and amounts recognised m the balance sheet
tor 1he respective plans

Change in the defined benefit obligation

Description 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Opening defined benefit obligati 43,49 35.60
Service cost 10 56 G RR
Mot interes expense 10l 241
Gratuity cost charged to statement of profil anil loss 13.57 12,29
Actuarial {gain}loss arising from changes in demouraphic assumptions {009y 442
Actuarial (ganploss ansng from changes in financial assumptions 1.74 {770
Expenence adjustments {3.57) (0.03)
Remeasurement gain/(loss) in other comprehensive income [1.92) (3.34)
Benefits paid (2.44) (106)
Closing defined benefit obligations 52.70 43.49
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

Description 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current service cost 10 56 988
Net interest cost 301 ! 24}
Amonnt recognised in the statement of profit and loss 13.57 12.29
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Incame is as under:

Description 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Actuarial (gain}/loss arising from changes n demographic assumptions (0.0%) 442
Actuarial (gainyloss arising from changes in financial assumptions 1.74 (110
Experience adjustments (3.5T) (0.03)

Amount recognised in other comprehensive pnceme (1.92) 13.34)
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(Al amounts Rs in Laes)

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company's plans are shown below:

31 Mareh 2020 31 March 2019
Discount rate 5. 55% 720
Future salary increase 5 00% 6 00%
Sensitivity analysis for geatuity liabiliny

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Tmpact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 52,70 4349
a) Impact due 1o increase of 1% 5134 4174
b} lmpact due 10 decrease of 1% 54.14 4536
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 52 70 43 49
a) Impact due 1o merease of 1% 54 14 4537

§1.32 4172

by Impact due 1o decrease of %

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based an a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes
in key assumptions ocourring al the reporting period

39, Fair value measurement
a. Financial instruments by category

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the assets and liabilities

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Financial assets measured al nmaortised cost

Trade receivables 42575 440 51
Marwin money deposits 5470 68 S8
Secunty deposit 402 390
Ciash andd cash equivalents 11167 99,18
Interest acerued on deposits with banks 3764 G013
Dieposit with matunty of more than three menths bt less than twelve months 438 104 38
Others 3.50 4112
Total inancial assets 65 ..66 K47.80
Financial liabilities measured ar amortised cost

Borrowings , 15,104 40 14,49 86
Deposits (including retention payable) 8120 073
Trade payables 645 94 56278
Other current financial labilities 35802 h1 24
Total financial liabilities I6,I88.-I_f>_ 15,491,606

b, Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received 10 sell an asset or paid (o transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date under current market conditions

The Company calegorizes assets and liabilities measured st fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability to observe inputs emploved in their

measurement which are described as (ollows

i Level |
Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

i) Level 2
Inputs are inputs that are observable, either direetly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included within level | for the asset or liability

iil) Level 3
Inputs are unohservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to observable related market data or Group's assumptions sbout pricing

by market participants
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(AL nmaunts Bs in Laes)
Fair value of Level 3 items

Finaneial liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed below

31-Mar-20
Carrying value Fair value

Financial assets 651 .66 651,66
Total financial assets 631 60 65166
Financial habilities
Fixved rate barrowmg® 2171800 217800
Vanable rate borrowing 9,307 87 9307 87
Total linancul lialilities 11,485.87 11,485.87
* Does nol include interest free borrowing amounting 1o Rs 3618 53 lacs
Financial liabilities
Fixed rate borrowing* 1,203 00 1,203 (0
Variable rate borrowing s 1001137 - _ 10,011.27

11,214.27 11,214.27

* Does not include interest free borrawing amounting to Rs 3.618 53 lacs

¢, Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost
i The management nssessed that fuir values of cash and cash equivalents. trade recemvables, tade pavables. bank overdrafts, Interest accrued on bank deposits wath
bunks, othet current financial assets and other currem fi sal halbl P thewr earrving amounts largely due 10 the short-term maturities of these

s iruiments

il The fair values of loans, security deposits. borrowings and ather financial assets and liabilities are considered 10 be the same as their fair values, as there 1s an
immaterial change in the lending rates

il There is no transfiers between level 1, 2 and 3 duning the year

4. Fi il risk t abjeetives and polici

(d

The Company's principal financial habilit prise loans and t ings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial fabilities is to finance the

Company's operations and to support its operations  The Company's financial assets include loans. trade and other receivables. and eash & cash equivalents that
derive directly from its operations

The Company 1s exposed 1o market risk. eredit rish aned liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management aversees the management of these risks. The Company's
senior management s supported by o tinancial risk cominiites thal advises on fimancial risks and the apprapriate financial risk governance framework for the
Company  This financial nsk committee provides hssurance 1o the Company’s senior managenient that the Company's financial sk activines are governed by
appropriate policies and procedure and that financal nsks are identified, measured and managed in aceordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The
Board of Directors reviews and agrees palicies for managing each risk, which are summansed as below

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value af furure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluetuate because of changes m market prices. Markel sk comprises
three types of risk interest rate risk, currency risk and other price rishs. Financial msiruments affieted by murket risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and
payables/receivables in foreign currencies

Interest rate risk

Interest rate tisk (s the nsk that the fair value or future cash Nows of @ financial instrument will fluctuaie because of changes in muarkel interest rates. The
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primanly 10 the Campany's long term debt obligations with floating interest rates The
Company is carrving its barrowings primarily i variable rate. The Company expects the variable rate to dechne, accordingly the Company is currently carrying its
loans at variable mterest rates

31 March 2020 31 Mareh 2019
Variable rate borrowings 9,307 87 10,011 27
Fixed rate borrowings 5,796 53 4,485 59

Interest vate sensitivity
The following table di s the ity to a reasomably possible change i interest rates on that portion of loans and borrawings atfected. With all other
variable held constant, the Company's profil before tax is affected through the impact on flaating rate borrawings. as festlows

Tmpact on loss hefore tas
31 March 2020 31 Mareh 2019

Interest rates - increase hy 30 basis points 46 54 50.06
Interest rates - decrease by S0 basis poims {dé 54) (S0.06)

I'he Company’s policy is to minimise interest rate cash fow risk exposures on long-term financing Longer-lerm barrawings are therefore usually a ied rates Al
31 March 2020, the Company is exposed 10 changes in market interest rates through bank borrowings at variable interest rates. Other borrowings are at fined
Inlerest rales
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(ANl amouonts Rs in Lacs)
Foreign carrency risks:

Foreign curreney risk is the risk thar the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctume because of changes in foreign exchange rates The Company's
exposure in foreign currency is in loans, debtors and advances denommated in foreign curreney. The Company 15 not restricting its exposure of nsk in change m
exchange rtes: The Company expects the Indian Rupee to strengthen and secordingly the Company i carrving the risk of change In exchange rates

31 Muarch 2020 31 March 2019

Fixed deposit UsD 054 053
Secured loans UsD 1023 14 53

Fareign currency sensitiviry
The followmng table demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the
Company's loss belore tax s due to changes in the far value of monetary assets and labilities. [ the INR had strengthened against the USD by 5% (31 March

20119 5%, then this would have had the followimng impact
Impact on loss before tax
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

USD sensitivity
INR/USD <Increase by 5%
INRAUSD -Decrease h)' 5% 3653 4% 44

(3651} (4% 44)

Maost of the Company's transactions are carried aut in INR. Exposures to currency exchange rates arise from the Company's overseas horrowings,
which are partly denominated in US dollars (USD)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterpary will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or custamer contract, leading 1o a financial lass The Company s
exposed to credit nsk fron its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its nancing activities, including losns to related parties, deposits with
banks and finaneial instiutions, foreign exchange twansactions and other financial instruments The maost significant inpul being the discount rate that reflects the
credit rish of counterparties

Thie Company continuously monmitors the credit quality of customers based on a credit rating scorecard Where available, external credit ratings and‘or reports on

customers are obtained and used. The Company’s policy is Lo deal only with credit worthy counterparties. The credit terms range between 30 and 1530 days

(i) Trade receivable

Customer credit risk is managed subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating 1o

credit risk

Credit quality of

u customer is assessed and individual eredit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in terms of number of days and amount

An impairment analysis is pertormed at each reporting date on an imdadual basis for major chents [n addimon n large aumbers of minor recesvables are grouped
nte homoegenous groups and assessed (or impairment collectively  The maximum exposure 1o credin risk ar the reporting date is the carrying value of financial

assers disclosed o Note 8 The Company does not hold collaeral as securnily

Gross carrying amount of trade receivables

A1 March 2020

31 March 2019

Ageing

-0} days past due 183 45 296 86
61-120 days pas| due 12058 4,76
121180 days past due R4 59 2390
180-365 duys past due 098 217
368-730 days past due 2384
More than 130 days = e _ 953
Carrving amount of trade receivabes 47 100G
Provision fer doubiful debis

Ageing 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(-6 days past due -

61-120 days past due

121-180 days past due =
180-365 days past due - -
More than 365 davs 5130 30,55
Carvying amount of teade receivables S1.30 30,55

n for doubtful debts - Trade receivabiles

Recanciliation of provisi

31 March 2020

31 March 201

Proviswn as al | April 2009 30 55 586
Addition during the vear 2075 24 09
Reversal durng the vear

Utilised during the year =

Provision as at 31 March 2020 51.3 30.55

The Company applies simplified model of recognising lifetime expected credit losses for all trade receivables as these items do not have a sgniticant Iinam-.mg
component In measuring the expected credii losses, the trade receivables have been assessed on a collective basis as they possess shared credit risk charsclerlflncs
They have been wrouped based on the days past due and also according to the weographical location af customers Trade recevables are written off {(1.e
derecognised) when there s na reasonable expectation of recovery. Failure o make payments within 365 days from the invoice date and failure 1o engage with the
Company on altermative payment arrangement amongst ather is considerad indicutors of no reusonable expectation of recovery
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(ANl amounts Rs in Lacs)

(i1} Financial instruments

Credit risk from balances with banks and fi 1 institutions is ged by the Company's treasury department (n dance with the Company's policy
Investment of surplus funds are made only with spproved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each party, The Company's masimum

exposure 1o eredit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 s the carrying amount.

Maturities of Monancial liabilities

Ihet table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial lubilities based an contractual undiscounted payments -

Contractual maturities of borrowings 31 Mareh 2020 31 March 2019

Upto one year 3,751 61 1,802 56
Between | and 2 years 2,916 55 2,921.39
Between 2 and 5 years 577983 487503
More than 5 vears 9.077.91 12,758 31
Total non-derivative liabilities 21,525.90 1235719

—— TEr——

Contractual matorities of Trade payables 31 Mureh 2020 31 Mareh 2019

Upto one year o4 562 78
Between | and 2 years . A
Between 2 and 5 vears . -
More than 5 years - -
Total non-derivative labilities 643,94 56278
Contractual maturities of security deposit veceived 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Upto one year 644 G044
Between | and 2 vears 3
Between 2 and 5 years 0 50 0.50
More than 5 years 0 b6 0.66
Total pon-derivative labilities 7,63 > =%

Contractual maturities of other financial lHabilities A1 March 2020 31 March 2019
Upte ane year 43247 424.37
Between | and 2 years = A
Between 2 and 5 vears - -

More than § years

Total non-derivative liabilities 43247 42437

Liguidity risk

The Cormpany monitors s risk of s shortage of funds by estimmting the future cash fows The Company's objective is to mantain a balance between continuity of
furnding and Besibnlivy through the use of bank overdialis, cash oredic Gacilivies and bank Toans The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect 1o
refinanging its debt and concluded it 1o be low. The Company has access to o sufficient variety of sources of funding  The Company had access to the followng
undrawn borrowing facilities ar the end of the reporting penods -

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Floating rate
Expining within one year (bank overdraft and other facilities)
= Secured
- Cash eredit facilities 601 46 62 38
- Short term loans
- Loan agamst fixed deposts
e S 36046 } 59226
Capital management
For the purpose of the Company's capital capital includes 1ssued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity

holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is

= tor aximise the shareholder value

- 1o ensure the Company's ability to continue s a going concern

- to provide an adeq return 10 shareholders by pricing products and services m o way that reflects the level of risk invalved i providing those goods and
Services

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes (1 economic conditions and (he requirements of the financial covenants. The
Company monitors capiial using a gearng rato, which is net debt divided by total capual plus net debi The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing
lnans and borrowings, wade payables, less cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2020 31 Murch 2019

Barrowings (note |5, note 19 and note 21) 15,104 40 14,4906 80
Trade pavables (note 20) (43 94 56278
Less Cash nnd cash equivalents (note ¥) 11167 90 18
Net delst 15,636.67 14,9611.46
Eauity HORT A0 RT
Deemed equity 2135090 2133090
Capital and net deln L 36,372.23

2.21% 41 13%

Cieanng rano
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42, Preoperative expenditure pending allocation

"

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Balance s per st account 4,260 48 341560

Additions during the year:

Employvee benefit expenses:

Salaries, wages and allowance 48 40 71.72

Chiber expenses ©

Lease reni

Power and juel 36 36.00

Repairs and maintenance of buildings 479 078

Legal charges 430 .63

Secunty eapense 072 08

Freaght and cartage 043 063

Interest expense 86001 69856

Bank charges 113 116
5210,28 4,260.48

Closing balance of Preoperative expenditure B £216.28 4,260.48

Capital Work-in-Progress 3,369,61 2,900.95

Total  8.385.89 716143

43 New standard adopred - Revenue from Contracts with Costomers

Indian Accouning Standard 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (*Ind AS 1157}, establishes o framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue is recognised and requires disclosures about the nature, amount, tming and uncertunty of revenues and cash flows arising from customer contracts Under
Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised through a 5-siep approach

(1) ldentily the contract(s) with customer,

{u) ldentify separate performance abligations in the contract,

(i} Dretermime the transaction price,

{iv) Allocate the transaction price 1o the performance obligations, and

(v Recognise revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied

The Company has adopted the standard on | April 2018 using modified retrospective approach with & cumulative catch-up adjustment made in retained earnings at
the beginning of the current financial vear, ie. | April 2013 as if the standard had always been in effect. Comparative information has nol been restated and
continues 10 be reported under the accounting standards in effect for those periods. The adoption of the new standard did not result in any adjustments to the
Company's revenue or net income  Also, there is no impact on the retained earnings as a1 1 Apnl 2017

A Disaggregation of revenue
Revenue anses mainly from horel opetatons

Description 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(A) Sale of services and product

Revenue from hospiality services 501444 5,978 54
Revenue from membersiip progranme 113.69 9215
Revenue from sale of traded goods 1 96 1.73
{B) Other ancillary revenue

Rent 4 Bb O bs

5,734.95 &079‘ 10

e Compeanny operaies imple business segment e opecaton of hiels

B Contract balanees

The following tables present information aboul trade receivables, contract assets, and contract liabilities:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Trade receivables (refer note 8) 425.75 440.51
Contract assets { Unbilled revenue) (refer nate 1) 350 17 09
Contract labilities
Advance from customers (refer note 23) 64| 82.15
Deferved revenue {(refer note 23) 6036 6135

A trade receivable is recorded when the Company has issued sn mvoice and has an unconditional right 1o recewve payimen In respet of revenues from hospitahity
services, the invoiee (s typically issued as the related performance obligations are satistied
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Contract assely
At entity' s nght 1o consideration m exchiange e goods or services (hal the entty s
than the passage of time. The table does not inchude amounts which were receved wnd revognised is fevenue in the year

(Al amounts Rs in Lacs)

ransterred G customer when that fght s conditioned on something other

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Opening balance 17.09 3292
Increase in unbilled revenue during the yea - =

Recopnised as revenue 11.59 15 63
Closing balance 3,50 17.08
Current 350 17.09
Non current - .

Total 3.50 17.08

An entity's obligation 1o transfier goods or services 10 a customer for which the entity his received consideration (or the amount is due) flom the customer

Advance from customers
Advance from is gnised when p 15
were received and recognised as revenue in the yer

| before the related performance obligation is satisfied. The table does not include amounts which

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Opening balance B2.15 130 81
Increase during the year ” i

Recogiised ay revenue 21 74 48 66
Closing halance b4 1 $2.15
Curren) 6041 8215
Nom current - .

Total 60.41 £1.15

Delerred revenue
Deterred revenue 15 recognised when payment is reveived before the refated performance o
the membership programme The table does not melude amounts which were received and recognised ns revenue in the yea

igation is satisfied The mam categones of deferred revenue relates o

31 March 2020

31 March 2009

Crpening balance 63 3% 4348
Inerease in deferred revenue dunng the year 19.87
Recopmised as revenue 709 :

Closing balance i, 36 63.35
Current 6036 63 35
Mo current -

Total fil). 36 63.38

Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities
There has been ne sgnificant changes in contact asselsicontract habilities during the year

Details of dues 1o Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises ns per MSMED Act,
2006 to the extent of Confirmation received:

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

The principal amount and the interest due thereon renaining unpaid to any suppher as at the end of 34.05
each accounting yeal

The amount of (nterest paid by the buyer in terms of  section 16 of the Micro Samall and Medwim -
Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made 1o the supplier

beyund the appoiated day during esch aocounting vear

I'he amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been 0.13
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise D A, 2006

The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid w the end of each sccounting year 013
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even m the sucededing vears. until such £
date when the interest dues as ahove are actually paid 1o the small enterprise for the purpase ol

disallowance as 4 deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium

Enterprise Development Act. 2000

3260

(.4

-

4
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ited (Formerly known as Apollo Zipper lndia Limited )
ended 31 March 2020

(Al amounts Rs in Lacs)
Leases
Operating lease commitments - Company ns lessee

Lease rentals pand under cancellable leases are as follows

Bharat Flotels Limited

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Notes l'ormin&- - of consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 20

Lease pavment made durning the vear m respect of cancellabie leases e 180
recognized 0 the statement of profin and foss h
Statement of Froin and Loss A .59
Current tax assets 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
it The major components of income tax expense for the period eod are;:
Prafit and loss section
Current income tax -
Deferved tay
Relating 1o origination and reversal of temporary differences - (208 .08) (201 90)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of prolit or loss (A) (208,68} (201.96)
Other Comprehensive lncome Section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCT during the year:
Deferred 1ax related to Net gain/{loss) on remeasurement of defined benefit plans (0.53) .93
Income tax charged 1o OC1(B) {153} .93
Total (A)+{15) (209.21) !ZUI.UJE

. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Indin’s domestic tax
vate [or 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019

(nad 57}

Accounting profit before 1as

Indi's S1ATOrY Ineome s rae 1T R2
M ek’ tatutory neome tax (194620 (186 42}
t H
assers created on carried forward losses (195.52) (322.32)
Deferred tax habilities created on block of assets 166,75 22776
Deferred tax habilities created on section 438 disallowances (2 49) (741)
Ohers . 1573 8% 36
Ineome tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (208,15} (201.03)

In the previous vear ending 31 March 2019 unsecured loan amounting 1w Rs 22708 lscs had been taken from Bharat Hotels Limited hitherto carnane imterest
(G010 13% per annum that bas been converted inte nlerest lree loal However i the curvent vear ending 31 March 2020, Uinsecured loan apgregating to
Rs 278 74 lacs has been repaid 10 Blharat Hotels Limited hitherio carrving interest 1 10 56% perannum . This has resulted ino recognition of deemed equity of Rs
NIL (11 March 2019 R 145 20 lacs) and deferred tax liability of Rs NIL {31 March 2009 Rs 3507 lacs) on deemed equity comribution and present value of the
foan of s (-) 33 20 Loes (11 March 2019 Rs 25 90 Lacs) in the books Further, interest @ 10 56% { 31 March 2019 @ 10 13%) (being effective interest rate)
for the year amounting (o s 614 08 Lacs (31 March 2009 Rs 331 37 lacs) on the canyimg value of the loan has been charged 10 statement of profit and loss for
the yea

(dhey space by beer witendiomatly defi blank)
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Related party disclosures

a) Name of the related parties and their relationship:

(Al amounts Ks in Lacs)

i} Holding Company L. Bharat Hotels Limited
i) Fellow subsidiaries I Prima Buildwell Private Limited
i) Key management personnel: L. Dr. Jyotsna Suri - Managing Director
2 Mr. Lalit Bhasin - Director (till 06 September 2017)
3. Mr. Narindra Dhruv Batra - Director
4, Mr. Kirat Singh - Independent director
5. Mr. Saurabh Kaushik - Independent director (1ill 22 October 2018}
6. Mr.Ravinder Suri - Independent director (w.e.t 04 December 2018)
7. Mr. Ramesh Suri - Director
8. Mr. Keshay Suri - Director

iv) Enterprise owned or significantly influenced by key management personnel or their relatives.

1. Jyotsna Holding Private Limited

2 Responsible Builders Private Limited

3 Kronokare Cosmetics Private Limited (till 10 May 2018)
4, Decksha Holding Limited

5. Deeksha Human Resource Initiatives Limited

v) Transaction with the above parties are in the ordinary course ol business.
vi) The holding company has given tollowing Corporate Guarantee on behalf of the Company:
Particulars 31 March 2020

Corporate guarantees given to the Customs authority for issue of licenses under the “Export 774.05
Promaotion for Capital Goods™ scheme 1o the Company

Corporate guaranice given 1o banks against loans taken by the Company 9.988.10

31 March 2019

796,85

12.275.00
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48 Helated party transactions;
(Al amounts Rs i Lacs)
The following 1able provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with refated parties during the vear ended 3| March 2020 and 31 March 2019

Particulary Holding Company ey management personnel Entities where KMPs and Total
(WMPy) their relatives have significant
mfluence
31 March 2020 | 31 Mareh 2009 [ 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2009 | 31 March 31 March | 31 March 20200 31 March
2020 2019 2019

Loans Keceived
Diharat Harels Limited 1,748 49 1.51775 . - - - 1,748.49 1,517.75 |
Decksha Holdings Limited - - - - 1,105 00 1,450 00 1 105,00 1,450.00
1 Jyoisna Sun - - 77000 97.00 - - 770,00 97.00

S = : - Jooo 8000 30,00 30.00
Responsible Builders Private Limited - - - - 70 00 __TLo0 7000 TLA
Loans repaid
Bharat Hotels Limiged 2,005 64 1,754 00 - . 2.365.64 1,754.00
Dueeksha Holdings Limired - J00 OU 750 00 .00 750,00
Dy Jvetsna Sun - - F00 00 - - - TO0.00 -
Prima Buildwell Private Limited - - - - . - 5 2
Consultancy and brand fee
Blurar Hotels Limited 35041 370,00 - - - - 350.41 376,00
Interest expense
Bharat Hetels Limited e 614 68 33137 - - - 614.0% 331.37
Respunaible Builders Prvate Linted - * oo | 69 11,90 6,94
Jyoesna Holding Private Limited = - - - 0 86 326 .86 320
Dy Jyotsma Sun == > - 27 12.12 - o 22.79 12,12
Prima Buildwell Private Linited - - . B . 2 .
Diecksha Holdings Limited 9280 2481 41,89 24,51
Purchase of goods’ Services
Kranokare Cosmetics vt Lid - - - - - -
Expenditure reimbursed by the
Company
Bharat Hotels Limited 19,98 131.25 - - - - 19,98 151.25
Others
Deeined equity contnbution - 20017 — - - - 01.17
Tuterest pal
| Deeksha Holdings Linited - = = -
|Dr Jyotsna Sun ____ ~ : ==L : =4
Prima Buildwell Private Linited - - . . > = e
Pavments made agaimst purchase of goods
OF Services
Deeksha Human Resource Imtatives Limited - - - - - - - -
Kranokare Cosmetics Pvt_Lid - - - - . . - =
Direcior's sitting fees
D Iyotsne Suri _ - [ 1,25 = 1.0 125
Mr. Ramesh Sun . N 100 N -/ . . 1.00 125
Mr Keshay Sun - - 150 1 08 - . 1.50 1.05
Mr. Lain Bhasin - - - - -
Mr Nanndra Batra b2s 0.25 - - .25 0,28
Mr. Ravinder Sun = = 1 50 0 80 - - 1.50 0.80 ]
Mr_ Kirat Singh - - 105 1 85 - - 1.05 185
Mr_Saurabh Kaushik - - 108 - - - L1035
Balance outstanding as at the year end
Loan and expenses payable
Bharat Hotels Limited 301853 3,282 59 - - - - 3,618,535 3,182.59
| D Jyorsna Suri i - - KT 220,30 . 280.41 120.30
Dk sha }Inldin_gal. imited . . s 1,696 77 8217 18 1,6%6,77 827.1%
Responsibde Builders Private Limited 146 08 129.02 196.98 129.02
Jyotsna Holding Private Limited 112 58 8263 112.58 $2.93
Corparate guarnntee outstanding U
Bharat Hotels Limited 10,762.15 13,071 85 - - - - 10,762.15 13,071.85
Maxi ling at any time
‘durin; the year
ﬁlﬂ Hotels Limited 361853 3,282.59 - - - - M&i__‘_i&'
Prima Buildwell Private Limited - - - - E x = -
Deeksha Holdings Limited - - - - 1,696 17 827 18 1,696.77 817.18
1 Bvotsng .‘hm_- - 28041 220 30 280,41 220,50
Respunsible Bullders Privaie Linited 55 T . a0k | 9m 196.98 129.02
Jyotsna Holding Private Limied - i1255 82 493 112,58 £2,93
Kronokare Cosmetics Pyt Lid I ] « - = =4
Deekshin Human Kesource mtistives Linuted - - = = .
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49 COVID- 1% pandemic has impacted and contmues 1o mpact business operations of the Company due to lockdown, travel bans, quatantines and other emergency measures. With respect (o

5

@Vr

operations of the Company. 1t has impacted i1s business by way of reduction in oceupaney rate of hotel and average realization rate per room starting from the month of March 2020 and
management has undertakendn undertaking various cost savings initiatives 1o conserve cash Subsequent to the year end, the hotel was operationnl at 2% occupancy rate mainly due to
accommodation taken by long staying guests and paid quarantine guests/doctors as per the government orders

In eviduanng the impact of COVID-19 on its ability to continue asa going cancern and the possible impact on s financial pasition. the management has assessed (he impact of macro-
economic conditions an its business and the carryime value of its major assets comprising of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) as at the balance sheet date 10 this resard, the
management has carefully considered the circumstances and nsk exposures ansmg from the COVID- |9 sstuation for developing estimates on the basis of all available information in its
assessment of impact thereal in its financial statements

While assessing the recoverable amount of PPE, the Company has used sienificant assumptions such as hotel occupancy rates. average roam rate per hotel, terminal growth hotel and
weghted average cost of capital The Company appomted mndependen valuer o assess i value of the property. plant and equipment and s ivestment. Funiber, the Company has
underyone an agreeiient (o identify the buyer for few of its assels dentified 10 sell at tle balance sheet date Based on atoresaid assessment, management believes thal the Company will be
able to meet all the of its obligations as well as recover the carrying amount of its aforesaid assets as on 31 March 2020

Management helieves that it has taken into aceount all the possible impact of known events arising from COVID-19 pandemic in the preparation of these financial statements The
assoviated econamic impact of the pandemic is highly dependent an variables that are difficult 1o predict. The unpact assessment of COVID-19 15 a continuing process given the
uncertamties associated with its nature and duration and actual results may ditfer materially from these estimates The Company will continug to monitor any matenal changes to future
economie conditions and any significant impaet of these changes would be recogrised in the financial statements as and when these matenial changes 10 economic conditions arise

Pust repoting date evenis:

Mo adpusting or signdicant non-adjusting events have occurred between the 31 March reporting date and the date of authorsaton
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